
   

 
 

  99 West Main Street    ●    P.O. Box 188    ●    New Albany, Ohio 43054    ●    614.855.3913    ●    Fax 939.2234    ●    newalbanyohio.org 

 
 
 

New Albany Planning Commission Meeting Agenda 
Monday, December 16, 2024 at 7:00 p.m. 

Members of the public must attend the meeting in-person to participate and provide comments at 
New Albany Village Hall at 99 West Main Street. The meeting will be streamed for viewing 
purposes only via the city website at https://newalbanyohio.org/answers/streaming-meetings/ 

I. Call to order 
 

II. Roll call 
 

III. Action on minutes:  November 18, 2024 
   

IV. Additions or corrections to the agenda 
Administration of oath to all witnesses/applicants/staff who plan to speak regarding an 
application on tonight’s agenda.  “Do you swear to tell the truth and nothing but the 
truth.” 

 
V.  Hearing of visitors for items not on tonight's agenda 
 
VI. Cases:  
 

VAR-61-2024 Variance 
A variance request to the Nottingham Trace zoning text Section E(5)(c), to allow a 
covered porch to encroach into the 29 rear yard setback at 6309 Callaway Square West 
(PID: 222-005228). 
Applicant: Nancy Willis 
 
Motion of Acceptance of staff reports and related documents into the record for  
VAR-61-2024. 
 
Motion of approval for application VAR-61-2024 based on the findings in the staff report 
with the conditions listed in the staff report, subject to staff approval.  
 
FPL-90-2024 Final Plat 
Final Plat for the dedication of public right-of-way and vacation of public right-of-way in 
historic Village Center located west of US-62 and east of High Street. 
Applicant: City of New Albany  
 
Motion of acceptance of staff reports and related documents into the record for - 
FPL-90-2024. 
 
Motion of approval for application FPL-90-2024 based on the findings in the staff report 
with the conditions listed in the staff report, subject to staff approval.  
 

 
VII. Other business 

 

https://newalbanyohio.org/answers/streaming-meetings/


   

 
 

  99 West Main Street    ●    P.O. Box 188    ●    New Albany, Ohio 43054    ●    614.855.3913    ●    Fax 939.2234    ●    newalbanyohio.org 

1. City Code Amendment: C.O. 1169.16(d) Commercial Wall Signs  
2. City Code Amendment: C.O. 1115 Conditional Uses 

 
VIII. Poll members for comment 

 
IX. Adjournment 

 
 



   

24 1118 PC Meeting Minutes – DRAFT  1 

 
 
 

New Albany Planning Commission 
Monday, November 18, 2024 Meeting Minutes - DRAFT

 

I. Call to order. 
The New Albany Planning Commission held a meeting on Monday, November 18, 2024 in the 
New Albany Village Hall.  Chair Kirby called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. and asked to hear 
the roll. 
 
Those answering the roll: 
 Mr. Kirby   present 
 Mr. Wallace   present 
 Mr. Schell   present 
 Ms. Briggs   present 
 Mr. Larsen   present 
 Council Member Wiltrout present 
 
Having all voting members present, the commission had a quorum to transact business. 
 
Staff members present:  Law Director Albrecht, Development Engineering Manager Denny, 
Planner I Blackburn, Planner II Christian, Planning Manager Mayer, Planner I Saumenig, Deputy 
Clerk Madriguera. 
 
II. Action on minutes:  October 21, 2024 
Chair Kirby asked if there were any corrections to the minutes from the October 21, 2024 
meeting. 
 
Commissioner Wallace stated that he thought that he asked the first two questions on page three 
and that Commissioner Larsen asked the third question on page three. 
 
Deputy Clerk Madriguera stated that she would confirm the appropriate identity with the 
recording.   
 
Hearing no further corrections, Commissioner Wallace moved to accept the October 21, 2024 
minutes as corrected, if needed.  Commissioner Briggs seconded the motion.  Chair Kirby asked 
whether there was any discussion on the motion.  Hearing none, he asked to hear the roll. 
 
Upon roll call:  Mr. Wallace yes, Ms. Briggs yes, Mr. Schell yes, Mr. Larsen yes, Mr. Kirby yes.  
Having five yes votes, the motion passed and the October 21, 2024 minutes were approved as 
corrected by Commissioner Wallace, if needed. 
 
Clerk’s note. Deputy Clerk Madriguera confirmed that Commissioner Wallace’s recollection was 
correct and she corrected the October 21, 2024 minutes. 
 
  

   
IV. Additions or corrections to the agenda. 



   

24 1118 PC Meeting Minutes – DRAFT  2 

Chair Kirby asked if there were any additions or corrections to the agenda. 
 

Planning Manager Mayer answered none from staff. 
 

Chair Kirby administered the oath to all present who wished to address the commission. 
 
V.  Hearing of visitors for items not on tonight's agenda. 
Chair Kirby asked whether there were any visitors present who wished to speak on an item not on 
the agenda.  Hearing none, he introduced the first case and asked to hear the staff report. 
 
VI. Cases:  
 
VAR-61-2024 Variance Reconsideration Request 
Reconsideration request for a variance to the Nottingham Trace zoning text Section E(5)(c) to 
allow a covered porch to encroach into the 35 rear yard setback at 6309 Callaway Square West 
(PID: 222-005228). 
Applicant: Nancy Willis  
Planning Manager Mayer delivered the staff report. 
 
Chair Kirby asked to hear from the applicant. 
 
Applicant Nancy Willis thanked the commission and staff.  She noted that the plan for the patio 
had been revised to reduce the encroachment area.  The patio would now encroach approximately 
2.03 feet.  She submitted a letter of support from the neighboring property owners saying they 
had no objection to the variance.  She pointed out that the property to the west has a similar 
screened porch, the property to the south has a similar patio, the property located two houses to 
the north has a patio that encroaches into the setback.  She stated that her point was that a 12-foot 
patio like the one she was proposing for her property is the standard and the norm in Nottingham 
Trace.  She asserted that reducing the patio further was not a reasonable option because she 
wanted to accommodate 8-12 diners and also to accommodate a wheel chair.  She noted that two 
commissioners at the last meeting found that the application did not meet the Duncan factors and 
that she did not show that her property was unique, however uniqueness was not one of the 
factors.  Ms.Willis then performed an analysis of her application under each of the Duncan 
factors.  She noted that this particular setback does not appear in any of the recorded deeds.   

 
Chair Kirby asked where the setback was recorded. 

 
Planning Manager Mayer explained that it was not recorded with the plat.  This is a rearyard 
setback which is specified in the zoning text. 

 
Ms. Willis asserted that the final plat map is the recorded document.  She further noted that the lot 
number had been changed during the course of the application’s progress through the entitlement 
process.  She asked how she would know about the rearyard setback.   

 
Planning Manager Mayer explained that the lots were numbered  during the rezoning process.  
However, during the final plat process the lots were numbered differently.  There are varying 
setbacks in this subdivision.  This disparity was not caught until review of this application for a 
variance was underway. 

 
Ms. Willis stated that she did not receive notice of the 35-foot setback.  She further observed that 
not all of the lots have the same setbacks, and none of the neighbors received notice.  She 
wondered why some of the properties were looked at and others were not. 

 
Planning Manager Mayer responded that staff was looking into the surrounding properties. 

 



   

24 1118 PC Meeting Minutes – DRAFT  3 

Chair Kirby asked Law Director Albrecht whether any commission member had standing to make 
a motion for reconsideration or whether it had to be member who voted in the majority. 
 
Law Director Albrecht responded that he would check, however he believed that any commission 
member was qualified to make the motion for reconsideration because it was an independent 
request. 

 
Commissioner Wallace asked what was happening with the property to the north. 

 
Planning Manager Mayer responded that city staff is examining the property to the north to see 
whether the patio was improperly permitted. 

 
Commissioner Wallace and Chair Kirby discussed past circumstances where a variance was 
granted following improper permitting by the city.  In those cases commission granted the 
variance based upon the finding that it arose from circumstances beyond the applicant’s control.  
They asked whether there was a timeline for examining the adjacent property. 
 
Law Director Albrecht clarified that Roberts Rules specified that a motion for reconsideration be 
offered by a member who voted in the majority, however the New Albany’s rules for boards and 
commissions were silent on that issue. 

 
Chair Kirby asked staff whether it is possible to put a note on final plats to require that the zoning 
text be checked. 

 
Planning Manager Mayer said yes and that the change in numbering could potentially affect 10 
properties. 

 
Commissioner Larsen asked whether lot number 101 had a different setback than lot number 107. 
 
Planning Manager Mayer responded that all of those lots had the 35-foot setback. 

 
Chair Kirby asked whether there was anyone present from the public who wished to speak on the 
application. 

 
Commissioner Schell asked whether this situation could be examined for staff error prior to a 
ruling by the commission on the application. 
 
Planning Manager Mayer responded yes. 

 
Commissioner Wallace stated that the commission could move the reconsideration.  Following 
that, the variance itself would be tabled. 

 
Ms. Willis distributed documents for inclusion in the record. 
 
Chair Kirby moved to accept the staff reports and related documents into the record for the 
reconsideration of VAR-61-2024.  Commissioner Schell seconded the motion.   
 
Chair Kirby asked if there was any discussion on the motion.  Hearing none, he asked to hear the 
roll. 
 
Upon roll call:  Mr. Kirby yes, Mr. Schell yes, Ms. Briggs yes, Mr. Larsen yes, Mr. Wallace yes.  
Having five yes votes, the motion passed and the staff reports and related documents were 
admitted to the record. 
 



   

24 1118 PC Meeting Minutes – DRAFT  4 

Commissioner Briggs moved for reconsideration of VAR-61-2024 based on the findings in the 
staff report with the conditions in the staff report, subject to staff approval.  Commissioner Schell 
seconded the motion. 
 
Chair Kirby asked if there was any discussion on the motion.  Hearing none, he asked to hear the 
roll. 
 
Upon roll call:  Ms. Briggs yes, Mr. Schell yes, Mr. Larsen yes, Mr. Kirby yes, Mr. Wallace yes.  
Having five yes votes the motion passed and reconsideration of VAR-61-2024 was granted. 
 
Chair Kirby moved to table VAR-61-2024 until the first regular meeting after staff completes the 
requested evaluation of similar properties.  Commissioner Larsen seconded the motion.   
 
Chair Kirby asked whether there was any discussion on the motion to table.  Hearing none he 
asked to hear the roll. 
 
Upon roll call:  Mr. Kirby yes, Mr. Larsen yes, Mr. Schell yes, Ms. Briggs yes, Mr. Wallace yes.  
Having five yes votes, the motion passed and VAR-61-2024 was laid upon the table until the first 
regular meeting after staff completes the requested evaluation of similar properties. 
 
The commission thanked the applicant for her diligence. 
 
Chair Kirby introduced the next case and asked to hear from staff. 
 
ZC-71-2024 Zoning Change 
Rezoning of 30.04 acres generally located north and west of Lambton Park Road and south of 
Brandon Road (PID: 222-005185 and 46 others (see backside of agenda for complete parcel list)) 
from Comprehensive-Planned Unit Development (C-PUD) to Infill-Planned Unit Development 
(I-PUD). 
Applicant: The New Albany Company LLC c/o Aaron Underhill, Esq.  
Planner I Saumenig delivered the staff reports for ZC-71-2024 and PPL-76-2024 simultaneously. 

 
Chair Kirby asked about the status of the leisure trail, understanding that the sidewalk is being 
redone using bricks. 

 
Applicant Tom Rubey on behalf of the New Albany Company (NACO) located at 8000 Walton 
Parkway responded no and indicated the location of the leisure trail. 

 
Commissioner Briggs asked whether other locations in the Country Club Community that use 
brick sidewalks, and what was the theory behind use of brick. 

 
Mr. Rubey responded yes.  Other locations that use brick sidewalks include Edge of Woods, 
Pickett Place, Ealy Crossing, and Ashton Grove use brick sidwalks.  He further explained that the 
change to brick sidewalks is aesthetically driven.  There would be street trees directly behind the 
curb then the brick sidewalk then a fence. 

 
Commissioner Wallace posited that the commission should impose a condition that the Parks and 
Trails Advisory Board should approve the brick sidewalk and leisure trail. 

 
Council Member Wiltrout asked whether the brick sidewalks would be used throughout and how 
much of the leisure trail is going to change. 

 
Mr. Rubey responded that brick sidewalks would be used throughout, and just shy of 1,000 lineal 
feet would change.  He continued that about 2,000 feet were installed the last time the application 
was reviewed by the commission.  Mr. Rubey then requested that he be able to back up and begin 
his presentation from the beginning.  He explained the procedural history of the application.  He 



   

24 1118 PC Meeting Minutes – DRAFT  5 

stated that the lots have not been released because NACO is a small company and they were 
handling many other projects related to the advent of Intel.  He then explained the new plan, the 
increase in lots, the subareas and types of homes including the new gatehouse.  The new plan 
proposes significant improvements in the development. 

 
Commissioner Wallace noted that there did not appear to be setback requirements for the new 
gatehouse in subsection 2, and that was troubling. 

 
Mr. Rubey noted the proximity of the golf course and stated that the gatehouse was a bit of a 
riddle. 

 
Commissioner Wallace noted that the gatehouse was not anything like the cluster homes and he 
was reluctant to approve a riddle. 
 
Chair Kirby liked the vision of the plan.  However he echoed Commissioner Wallace’s concern 
regarding the gatehouse and recommended that it be tightened down. 

 
Chair Kirby referenced the zoning  He asked city staff whether the details of the cluster lots and 
the gatehouse could be included in the final development plan. 
 
Mr. Rubey acknowledged the concern.  He assure the commission that they would not just sell a 
lot and permit the lot owner to develop their home.  He continued that creating this development 
was a process and that he would be back with a plan.  He further explained that similarly to 
Bottomly Crescent and Edge of Woods, buyers would purchase a lot and a plan with the lot. 
 
Planning Manager Mayer responded yes, similar to the Oxford subdivision.  The zoning text 
could grant authority to the commission to review the specifics of the gatehouse and the cluster 
homes. 

 
Commissioner Wallace asked whether the portion of sublot 2 that contained the gatehouse could 
be made its own section. 

 
Mr. Rubey answered yes; it could be its own subarea.  His suspicion was that the house would be 
used as a model home or gatehouse for the sale of the other homes and would eventually become 
a single family home. 

 
Chair Kirby and Commissioner Wallace stated that the condition would be that the gatehouse 
would become subarea 3 subject to review and approval at final development. 

 
Mr. Rubey agreed.  He continued that the existing retention pond will be moved to the west and 
made deeper.  It will also have a pier. 

 
Commissioner Wallace asked whether members of the New Albany Parks and Trails Advisory 
Board were concerned that narrowing the path within the development made this neighborhood 
less inviting to the public. 

 
Mr. Rubey responded no, that concern was not raised.  He explained that the intent was to make 
this area feel special not to make it feel exclusive.  The roads into and through the development 
are all public roads.  He acknowledged that there were appointments in New Albany where public 
spaces felt private, such as the brick piers at Lambton Park Road and and US-62, and Edge of 
Woods. 

 
Chair Kirby asked whether there would be street trees. 

 
Mr. Rubey said they were not required and continued that Edge of Woods does not have street 
trees.  Saving costs is not the idea with this development, the idea is to make this development 



   

24 1118 PC Meeting Minutes – DRAFT  6 

look nicer.  Nonetheless it is hard to find the balance, but they were hoping to do so in final 
development. 

 
Commissioner Wallace confirmed that the development would not be gated. 

 
Mr. Rubey responded that it was not gated but there may be non-operational gates.  He stated that 
there also may be crushed granite at the entrance. 

 
Chair Kirby responded that if there is granite there need to be trees in order to prevent this from 
becoming a heat island. 

 
Mr. Rubey responded that the plan will not look like the current rendering when it is reviewed at 
final development. 

 
Chair Kirby continued that street trees are not required in the zoning text in subarea 2, but most of 
the diagrams showed street trees.  He confirmed that the house would be subarea 3. 

 
Mr. Rubey showed a rendering of subarea 2 and said he was not sure whether it would contain 
street trees or not, they would evaluate that issue.  They wanted to make it feel like a park.  He 
clarified that the renderings are dreams and images.  He agreed that the newly created subarea 3 
would contain the house.  He stated that the lots will be seeded and will look like finished lawns.  
Each home will have a different metal gate.  And further that he had just signed an an agreement 
with the architectural firms and expected to get started in the next couple of weeks. 

 
Chair Kirby opened the public hearing. 

 
Margaret Farriter, 7489 Lambton Park Road, approached the lecturn.  Ms. Farriter noted that 
there are currently many golf balls and that these homes would be even closer to the golf course, 
she asked whether the golf course would be changed. 

 
Mr. Rubey responded that the objective is to not change the course to accommodate the homes.  
There are lots of golf balls, and how to accomplish the development and accommodate the course 
was a work in progress. 

 
Commissioner Wallace recalled the commission’s informal review and asked about the 
reconfiguration of the existing pond. 

 
Mr. Rubey explained that the existing pond is under the jurisdiction of the Army Corps of 
Engineers.  It has not been well maintained over the years; cat tails and water lilies have taken 
over.  It will be dredged, replanting will take place on the golf course side.  They are working 
with regulatory agencies to improve it.  It will be made smaller. 

 
Chair Kirby asked for other questions. 
 
Hearing none, he moved to accept the staff reports and related documents into the record for ZC-
71-2024.  Commissioner Larsen seconded the motion. 
 
Chair Kirby asked whether there was any discussion.  Hearing none, he asked to hear the roll. 
 
Upon roll call:  Mr. Kirby yes, Mr. Larsen yes, Ms. Briggs yes, Mr. Wallace yes, Mr. Schell yes.  
Having five yes votes, the motion passed and the staff reports and related documents were 
admitted into the record for ZC-71-2024. 
 
Commissioner Wallace moved for approval of ZC-71-2024 based on the findings in the staff 
report with the conditions in the staff report and the following additional conditions: 
 



   

24 1118 PC Meeting Minutes – DRAFT  7 

 5. The brick sidewalks and leisure trail locations and connections should be approved by 
the New Albany Parks and Trails Advisory Board. 

 
 6. Subarea 2 does not include the gatehouse.  The gatehouse will be in Subarea 3 and the 

specifications for setbacks shall be addressed in the final development plan. 
 
Chair Kirby seconded the motion. 
 
Chair Kirby asked if there was any discussion on the motion.  Hearing none, he asked to hear the 
roll. 
 
Upon roll call: Mr. Wallace yes, Mr. Kirby yes, Ms. Briggs yes, Mr. Larsen yes, Mr. Schell yes.  
Having five yes votes, the motion passed and ZC-71-2024 was approved based on the findings in 
the staff report subject to the conditions in the staff report and the conditions as stated above. 
   
PPL-76-2024 Preliminary Plat 
Preliminary plat for a 40 lot residential subdivision on 30.04 acres generally located north and 
west of Lambton Park Road and south of Brandon Road (PID: 222-005185 and 46 others (see 
backside of agenda for complete parcel list)). 
Applicant: The New Albany Company LLC c/o Aaron Underhill, Esq.  
Planner II Christian delivered the staff report. 
 
Community Development Department Engineer Denny delivered the engineering report 

 
Chair Kirby asked whethere there were any additional questions on the preliminary plat.   
 
Hearing none, Chair Kirby moved to admit the staff reports and related documents into the record 
for PPL-76-2024.  Commissioner Schell seconded the motion. 
 
Chair Kirby asked if there was any discussion on the motion.  Hearing none, he asked to hear the 
roll. 
 
Upon roll call:  Mr. Kirby yes, Mr. Schell yes, Mr. Larsen yes, Ms. Briggs yes, Mr. Wallace yes.  
Having five yes votes, the motion passed and the staff reports and related were admitted to the 
record for PPL-76-2024. 
 
Commissioner Wallace moved for approval of PPL-76-2024 based on the findings in the staff 
report with the conditions listed in the staff report, subject to staff approval.  Commissioner 
Schell seconded the motion.   
 
Chair Kirby asked whether there was any discussion on the motion.  Hearing none, he asked to 
hear the roll. 
 
Upon roll call:  Mr. Wallace yes, Mr. Schell yes, Mr. Larsen yes, Ms. Briggs yes, Mr. Kirby yes.  
Having five yes votes, the motion passed and PPL-76-2024 was approved based upon the 
findings in the staff report with the conditions listed in the staff report subject to staff approval. 
 
The commission wished the applicant good luck. 
 
Chair Kirby introduced FPL-85-2024 and asked to hear from staff. 

 
 

FPL-85-2024 Final Plat 
Final plat for phase 1 of the Courtyards at Haines Creek subdivision located at 8390 and 8306 
Central College Road in Franklin County (PIDs: 222-005156, 222-005157, 222-005158, 222-
005159). 



   

24 1118 PC Meeting Minutes – DRAFT  8 

Applicant: Epcon Haines Creek, LLC 
Planner II Christian delivered the staff report. 
 
Chair Kirby asked whether there were comments from engineering. 
 
Engineering Manager Denny delivered the engineering memo. 
 
Chair Kirby asked whether there were questions for staff from the commission.  Hearing none, he 
asked to hear from the applicant.  
 
Applicant Trisha Brown of EMH&T averred that the floodplain issue had been addressed and that 
they would be submitting any necessary documents to Franklin County.  She spoke to the 1-acre 
shortage of parkland.  The reserve is actually 14.52 acres, the files have been updated.  She 
explained that the development has been redesigned to reduce the shortage to .10 of an acre.  The 
city does not permit storm water facilities to be counted and the calculations were not complete at 
the time the original calculation.  Since completion, it has been discovered that the shortage is 
only .10 of an acre.  As such, the applicant was requesting a reduction of the fee in lieu. 
 
Chair Kirby opened the public hearing. 
 
Tamara Davies, 8200 Central College Road, delivered the attached slide presentation. She stated 
that since the time she purchased her property the adjacent property’s zoning was different. At 
what point is the master grading plan reviewed and approved, because such review and approval 
was not apparent to her.  She noted that this development would be 7-8 feet above its current 
level.  She asserted that such an increase is material.  This should have been considered ahead of 
time. 

 
Chair Kirby asked when will it be reviewed. 

 
Planning Manager Mayer responded that it will be reviewed at final development and he offered 
to share it with Ms. Davies. 

 
Ms. Davies continued that her home was currently at grade.  She stated that originally there was 
going to be a wall there and that has been abandoned for mounding but there is going to be a 
significant elevation change.  She asked who would measure the draingage. 

 
Planning Manager Mayer stated that drainage was presented and reviewed with the final 
development plan.  The city’s engineer will review and approve the storm water plan. 
 
Chair Kirby asked whether there were any catch basins along the outer edge. 

 
Ms. Brown explained that there were not any catch basins.  The storm water management plan 
included draining the water to the street and into sewers, and that she had worked with the city’s 
development engineer to develop the plan.  This would ensure a controlled release of the storm 
water. 

 
Ms. Davies confirmed that the Army Corps of Engineers, the Ohio EPA had approved the 
development.  Ms. Davies concluded that she doubted that the country club community would 
approve this community, yet it is next to her house. 

 
Ron Davies, 8200 Central College Road.  He asked that setbacks be included on the final plat.  
The applicant agreed.  He spoke about easements and referenced p13 of city council minutes from 
July 18 which referenced an easements and included a commitment to an easement.  He requested 
that the July 18, 2024 minutes be included in the record. 

 



   

24 1118 PC Meeting Minutes – DRAFT  9 

Law Director Albrecht said he was not sure whether the easement on the east and west side was 
included, beyond discussion. 

 
Council Member Wiltrout asked for the context of the easement. 

 
Mr. Davies responded that he was not sure but these are building blocks and are protections for 
landowners to the west. 

 
Council Member Wiltrout responded that she understood what an easement is, but the context of 
this particular easement remained unclear. 
 
Mr. Davies responded that the easement gives protection against encroachment. 
 
Commissioner Wallace explained that it is important because there are different kinds of 
easements.  The commission wants to help if they can.  Although the commission cannot help to 
enforce the easement but they need to know what kind of easement it is. 

 
Mr. Davies responded that this was a year and a half ago. 

 
Council Member Wiltrout stated that she did not think this was a memory problem.  She stated 
that if this was a utility easement, the utility would have brought it to the commission’s attention.  
It was not likely a homeowner easement. 

 
Mr. Davies stated that there are specific prohibited things that cannot happen with an easement. 

 
Chair Kirby stated that the commission would love to see the easement. 

 
Ms. Davies stated that what they are asking for is the setback to be treated as an easement so they 
can have the greater protection. 

 
Chair Kirby responded that mistakes are made with easements as well as setbacks, and further 
that the commission does not have the authority to impose an easement on this property tonight. 

 
Law Director Albrecht agreed.  He stated that was correct, that ship has sailed. The zoning cannot 
be changed at this meeting. The minutes indicate that it was considered, and that it was a drainage 
easement, but the easement language was not included as a condition of approval. 
 
Chair Kirby restated that it was talked about but it was not included. 

 
Commissioner Wallace remarked that a drainage easement allows the city come in and address 
drainage issues, and asked how that would enure to an adjacent property owner. 

 
Planning Manager Mayer explained the operation of a drainage easement. 
 
Mr. Davies responded that this is not helpful because the documents for this property offer 
building blocks to make sure nothing happens in the back of these homes.  There is a lot of 
verbiage about encroachment in the front, but the language in the back is word salad.  And further 
that there were firm commitments regarding what would happen and those things have not 
happened. 

 
Chair Kirby appreciated his point but stated that the documents did not include what, if anything 
was agreed to. 

 
Commissioner Wallace recounted the prior case involving reconsideration of a variance request.  
The property owner was able to demonstrate that she was not provided adequate notice of the 



   

24 1118 PC Meeting Minutes – DRAFT  10 

setback.  This discussion suggests that, even in the event that the easement was not included by 
mistake, this is not the kind of easement that would negatively affect your rights. 
 
Ms. Davies asked whether the commission could include that the east and west sides have a 50-
foot setback. 
 
Council Member Wiltrout asked Planner II Christian to indicate the area being discussed, and 
asked whether it was standard city procedure to have the setbacks in the zoning text or whether 
they were included in all of the documents. 

 
Planner II Christian indicated the location on the site plan.  He explained that plats usually 
include front yard setbacks and easements.  The zoning text would typically include all of the 
setbacks and easements.  He further agreed with the suggestion that a notation be added to the 
recorded plat that the zoning text should be consulted.  
 
Council Member Wiltrout stated that she agreed.  It would be a lot to include all of that 
information on the recorded plat.  She supported the incorporating a notation on the recorded plat 
to refer to the zoning text. 
 
Chair Kirby asked for further questions from the commission.   
 
Hearing none, Chair Kirby moved to accept the staff reports and related documents into the 
record for FPL-85-2024.  Commissioner Briggs seconded the motion. 
 
Chair Kirby asked whether there was any discussion on the motion.  Hearing none, he asked to 
hear the roll. 
 
Upon roll call:  Mr. Kirby yes, Ms. Briggs yes, Mr. Wallace yes, Mr. Larsen yes, Mr. Schell yes.  
Having five yes votes the motion passed and the staff reports and related documents were 
admitted into the record for FPL-85-2024. 
 
Commissioner Wallace moved to approve FPL-85-2024 based on the findings in the staff report 
with the three conditions in the staff report and the following additional condition: 
 

4. That the plat be modified to include a note that the zoning text be consulted for 
restrictions including the setbacks. 
 

Commissioner Larsen seconded the motion. 
 
Chair Kirby asked if there was any discussion on the motion.  Hearing none, he asked to hear the 
roll. 
 
Upon roll call:  Mr. Wallace yes, Mr. Larsen yes, Mr. Kirby yes, Ms. Briggs yes, Mr. Schell yes.  
Having five yes votes, the motion passed and FPL-85-2024 subject to the conditions in the staff 
report and the additional condition as stated above. 
 
The commission thanked the applicant and wished them good luck 
 
Chair Kirby introduced FPM-81-2024 and asked to hear from staff. 
 
FPM-81-2024 Final Plat Modification 
Final plat modification for 8 Hawksmoor Drive (PID: 222-004645-00). 
Applicant: Trevor Arnold 
Planner II Christian delivered the staff report. 

 
Community Development Department Engineering Manager delivered the engineering report. 



   

24 1118 PC Meeting Minutes – DRAFT  11 

 
Chair Kirby asked to hear from the applicant. 

 
Applicant Curtis Eckleberry on behalf of Trevor Arnold.  He explained the history of the location 
of the tree preservation zone and the replatting of the lot.  What this application sought to 
accomplish was increasing the developable space and moving and increasing the tree preservation 
zone. 

 
Commissioner Briggs asked why the lot line was moved.  Did the owner acquire additional 
property?  And whether there was a neighbor to the south and whether an additional lot was 
acquired from that neighbor. 

 
Mr. Eckleberry responded yes.  There were a few different lots that changed.  Additional property 
was acquired which necessitates a modification of the plat. 

 
Commissioner Wallace asked Planner II Christian to show the existing lot line. 

 
Council Member Wiltrout asked for a recounting of the story of how this all happened. 

 
Planning Manager Mayer recounted the history of the resubdivision, he explained that four lots 
were made into three. 

 
Council Member Wiltrout asked for the goal of this application. 

 
Planning Manager Mayer to move the tree preservation zone because its current location limits 
the amount of developable space. 
 
Council Member Wiltrout stated that this application proposes to move and to increase the size of 
the tree preservation zone while also increasing the size of the developable space. 

 
Commissioner Schell confirmed that the applicant agreedwith the conditions in the staff report. 
 
Chair Kirby asked whether anyone from the public  was present who wished to speak on the 
application.  Hearing none, he asked whether there were additional questions from the 
commission. 

 
Commissioner Wallace remarked that staff indicated that the tree survey should be reviewed to 
confirm which should be removed. 
 
Planner II Christian agreed and recommended that staff work with the applicant on an overlay 
which would document which trees would be removed. 

 
Mr. Eckleberry agreed and stated that he had already had communications with Sierra on this 
matter. 
 
Chair Kirby asked for additional questions.  Hearing none, he moved for acceptance of the staff 
reports and related documents into the record for FPM-81-2024.  Commissioner Larsen seconded 
the motion.   
 
Chair Kirby asked whether there was any discussion on the motion.  Hearing none, he asked to 
hear the roll. 
 
Upon roll call:  Mr. Kirby yes, Mr. Larsen yes, Mr. Schell yes, Mr. Wallace yes, Ms. Briggs yes.  
Having five yes votes, the motion passed and the staff reports and related documents were 
accepted into the record for FPM-81-2024. 
 



   

24 1118 PC Meeting Minutes – DRAFT  12 

Commissioner Schell moved for approval of application FPM-81-2024 based on the findings in 
the staff report with the conditions in the staff report, subject to staff approval. 
 
Chair Kirby offered the following additional condition:  
 

To include documents showing new preservation zone overlayed on the tree survey 
document.  
 

Commissioner Schell agreed to the condition. 
 
Commissioner Larsen seconded the motion. 
 
Chair Kirby asked whether there was any discussion on the motion.   
 
Commissoner Briggs asked whether the trees had already been removed. 
 
Mr. Eckleberry’s response is inaudible and not on the video. 
 
Commissioner Briggs said ok, thank you. 
 
Hearing no further discussion, Chair Kirby asked to hear the roll. 
 
Upon roll call:  Mr. Schell yes, Mr. Larsen yes, Mr. Wallace yes, Mr. Kirby yes, Ms. Briggs yes.  
Having five yes votes, the motion passed and FPM-81-2024 was approved subject to the 
conditions in the staff report and the additional condition as stated above. 
 
The commission thanked the applicant and wished him good luck. 
 
 
VII. Other business 
Chair Kirby asked whether there was any other business before the commission. 
 
Hearing none, he polled the members for comment. 
 
VIII. Poll members for comment 

 
Commissioner Wallace commented that the CRA committee had their annual meeting and tours 
of various companies receiving tax incentives. 
 
Commissioner Larsen reported that the US-62 Interchange will meet for their fourth and last 
meeting on November 19th and that there will be an open house on Devember 2nd. 
 
Commissioner Schell asked for notice of the open house. 

 
IX. Adjournment 
Having no further business, Chair Kirby adjourned the November 18, 2024 regular meeting of the 
New Albany Planning Commission without objection at 9:38 p.m. 
 
Submitted by: Deputy Clerk Madriguera, Esq. 
 
 
Appendix 
VAR-61-2024 
 Staff Report 
 Applicant Documents 
 Record of Action 



   

24 1118 PC Meeting Minutes – DRAFT  13 

ZC-71-2024 
 Staff Report 
 Applicant Presentation 
 Record of Action 
PPL-76-2024 
 Staff Report 
 Record of Action 
FPL-85-2024 
 Staff Report 
 Mr. Davies’ Presentation 
 Mr. Davies’ testimony at July 18, 2024 New Albany City Council Meeting 
 Record of Action 
FPM-81-2024 
 Staff Report 
 Record of Action 

 
 

  



 

PC 24 1118 6309 Callaway Square West Reconsideration VAR-61-2024 1 of 3
   

 
 

 

 

 

Planning Commission Staff Report 

November 18, 2024 Meeting 

  

 

6309 CALLAWAY SQUARE WEST 

COVERED PORCH ENCROACHMENT VARIANCE 

RECONSIDERATION REQUEST 

 

 

LOCATION:  6309 Callaway Square West (PID: 222-005228-00) 

APPLICANT:   Nancy Willis, homeowner 

REQUEST:   Reconsider a variance to allow a covered porch to encroach 6 feet into the 

rear yard setback  

ZONING:   I-PUD (Planned Unit Development) 

STRATEGIC PLAN:  Residential 

APPLICATION: VAR-61-2024 

 

Review based on: Application materials received November 1, 2024. 

Staff report completed by Stephen Mayer, Planning Manager 

 

I. REQUEST AND BACKGROUND  

The homeowner requests reconsideration of a variance application the Planning Commission 

reviewed and denied on September 16, 2024. The variance request was to allow for the construction 

of a covered patio and fireplace to encroach approximately 6 feet into the 29-foot rear yard setback. 

This staff report is only to decide if the variance should be reconsidered.  

 

The September submittal material included two site plans, one that shows the patio and fireplace 

encroaching 4 feet into the setback and another that shows the improvements encroaching 6 feet 

into the setback. The city staff realized the difference on the day of the meeting and presented the 

variance as a 4-foot encroachment at the meeting even though the staff report evaluated the 

encroachment as 6 feet to err in favor of the homeowner.  

 

II.  SITE DESCRIPTION & USE  

The property is 0.16 acres and contains a single-family home. The lot is west of New Albany 

Conduit Road and south of Walnut Street. The property is located within the Nottingham Trace 

subdivision. All the neighboring properties are residential.   

 

III. ASSESSMENT 

Per Codified Ordinance 159.06(c) (Reconsideration of Commission/Board Action) the Planning 

Commission may reconsider any action it has taken upon its own motion for good cause shown.  

Any action denying or disapproving an application, other than one involving an incomplete 

application, may be reconsidered no later than the second regular meeting after the original action 

from which reconsideration is being requested was taken, only if the applicant or its designee 

clearly demonstrates one of the following: 

1. Circumstances affecting the subject property or item under consideration have 

substantially changed; or 

2. New information is available that could not with reasonable diligence have been 

presented at a previous hearing. 



 

PC 24 1118 6309 Callaway Square West Reconsideration VAR-61-2024 2 of 3
   

 

Since the September hearing the homeowner made the following updates: 

• Revised the site plan so the fireplace no longer encroaches into the rear yard setback. The 

setback encroachment has been reduced to approximately 3 feet.  

• Submitted additional information that wasn’t available at the September meeting including 

site photos and a letter of support from the homeowner behind the applicant’s property.  

 

The homeowner has submitted the following information: 

• Reconsideration Letter to Planning Commission 

• Exhibit A-Application and Staff Recommendation 

• Exhibit B-Decision and Record of Action 

• Exhibit C- 6309 Callaway Square West - Side Elevations, site plan, and building plan 

• Exhibit D-Excerpt from Transcript of Planning Commission Hearing 9.16.2024 

• Exhibit E-Duro Neighbor Letter of Support 

• Exhibit F-Photos of 6309 Callaway Sq W 

• Exhibit G-6321 Callaway Sq W 

• Exhibit H-Nottingham Trace Phase 3 Recorded Plat  

• Exhibit I- Deed to 6309 Callaway Square West 

 

V. ACTION 

Should the Planning Commission find that the reconsideration request has sufficient basis for 

approval, the following motion is appropriate: 

 

Move to reconsider variance application VAR-61-2024 pursuant to Codified Ordinance 159. 

 

If the motion passes, staff recommends that the board immediately table the application until the 

next regularly scheduled meeting date so that the surrounding neighbors can be notified of the 

hearing and staff can prepare staff report containing a full evaluation of the proposal. The 

following motion is appropriate: 

 

Move to table variance application VAR-61-2024 until the next regularly scheduled 

Planning Commission meeting. 

 

   

 

  



 

PC 24 1118 6309 Callaway Square West Reconsideration VAR-61-2024 3 of 3
   

Approximate Site Location: 

 
Source: NearMap 

 
 

 



123

Community Development Department

RE:      City of New Albany Board and Commission Record of Action

Dear Suncraft Corporation Inc.,

Attached is the Record of Action for your recent application that was heard by one of the City of New
Albany Boards and Commissions. Please retain this document for your records. 

This Record of Action does not constitute a permit or license to construct, demolish, occupy or make
alterations to any land area or building.  A building and/or zoning permit is required before any work can
be performed.  For more information on the permitting process, please contact the Community
Development Department.

Additionally, if the Record of Action lists conditions of approval these conditions must be met prior to
issuance of any zoning or building permits. 

Please contact our office at (614) 939-2254 with any questions.

Thank you.



123

Community Development Department

Decision and Record of Action
Monday, November 18, 2024

The New Albany Planning Commission took the following action on 11/18/2024 .

Variance

Location: 6309  Callaway Square W, Unit:107
Applicant: Suncraft Corporation Inc.,

Application: PLVARI20240061
Request: Reconsideration request for a variance to the Nottingham Trace zoning text Section E(5)(c)

to allow a covered porch to encroach into the 35 rear yard setback at 6309 Callaway Square
West (PID: 222-005228).

Motion: To reconsider

Commission Vote: Motion Approved, 5-0

Result: Variance, PLVARI20240061 was Approved for reconsideration, by a vote of 5-0.

Recorded in the Official Journal this December 09, 2024

Condition(s) of Approval: To table variance application until the next regularly scheduled Planning
Commission meeting.

Staff Certification:

Kylie Blackburn
Planner







 

PC 24 0916 6309 Callaway Square West VAR-61-2024 1 of 4 

 
 

 

 

 

Planning Commission Staff Report 

September 16, 2024 Meeting 

 

 

6309 CALLAWAY SQUARE WEST 

COVERED PORCH & FIREPLACE ENCROACHMENT VARIANCE 

 

 

LOCATION:  6309 Callaway Square West (PID: 222-005228-00) 

APPLICANT:   Suncraft Corporation, Inc. 

REQUEST:   Variance to allow a covered porch and fireplace to encroach 6 feet into the 

29 foot rear yard setback  

ZONING:   I-PUD (Planned Unit Development) 

STRATEGIC PLAN:  Residential 

APPLICATION: VAR-61-2024 

 

Review based on: Application materials received on August 19, 2024. 

Staff report prepared by Sierra Cratic-Smith, Planner. 

 

I. REQUEST AND BACKGROUND  

The applicant requests a variance to allow a new covered porch and fireplace to encroach 

approximately 6 feet into the 29-foot rear yard setback that is required by the Nottingham Trace 

zoning text Section E(5)(c). The zoning text allows for decks, screened porches and patios to 

encroach into the building setback a maximum of 6 feet.  In this case, the minimum rear yard 

setback for this covered porch with a fireplace (considered to be part of the porch since it is attached 

to it) is 29 from the rear lot line. The applicant proposes a setback of 23 feet from the rear lot line.  

 

II. SITE DESCRIPTION & USE  

The property is 0.16 acres and contains a single-family home. The lot is west of New Albany 

Conduit Road and south of Walnut Street. The property is located within the Nottingham Trace 

subdivision. All the neighboring properties are residential.  

 

III. ASSESSMENT  

The application complies with application submittal requirements in C.O. 1113.03, and is 

considered complete. In accordance with C.O. 1113.05(b), all property owners within 200 feet of 

the subject property in question have been notified of the request via mail. 

 

Criteria 

The standard for granting of an area variance is set forth in the case of Duncan v. Village of 

Middlefield, 23 Ohio St.3d 83 (1986). The Board must examine the following factors when 

deciding whether to grant a landowner an area variance: 

 

All of the factors should be considered and no single factor is dispositive.  The key to whether an 

area variance should be granted to a property owner under the “practical difficulties” standard is 

whether the area zoning requirement, as applied to the property owner in question, is reasonable 

and practical. 

1. Whether the property will yield a reasonable return or whether there can be a beneficial 

use of the property without the variance. 

2. Whether the variance is substantial. 

naw10
Alpha White Exhibit



 

PC 24 0916 6309 Callaway Square West VAR-61-2024 2 of 4 

3. Whether the essential character of the neighborhood would be substantially altered or 

adjoining properties suffer a “substantial detriment.” 

4. Whether the variance would adversely affect the delivery of government services. 

5. Whether the property owner purchased the property with knowledge of the zoning 

restriction. 

6. Whether the problem can be solved by some manner other than the granting of a variance. 

7. Whether the variance preserves the “spirit and intent” of the zoning requirement and 

whether “substantial justice” would be done by granting the variance. 

 

Plus, the following criteria as established in the zoning code (Section 1113.06):  

 

8. That special conditions and circumstances exist which are peculiar to the land or structure 

involved and which are not applicable to other lands or structures in the same zoning 

district. 

9. That a literal interpretation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance would deprive the 

applicant of rights commonly enjoyed by other properties in the same zoning district under 

the terms of the Zoning Ordinance. 

10. That the special conditions and circumstances do not result from the action of the 

applicant.  

11. That granting the variance requested will not confer on the applicant any special privilege 

that is denied by the Zoning Ordinance to other lands or structures in the same zoning 

district. 

12. That granting the variance will not adversely affect the health and safety of persons 

residing or working in the vicinity of the proposed development, be materially detrimental 

to the public welfare, or injurious to private property or public improvements in the 

vicinity. 

IV.  EVALUATION  

Variance to allow a covered porch and fireplace to encroach 6 feet into the 29 foot rear yard 

setback that is required by the Nottingham Trace zoning text Section E(5)(c). 

 

The following should be considered in the board’s decision: 

1. The applicant requests a variance to allow a 25-foot wide by 12-foot deep covered porch 

and two-foot deep fireplace to encroach approximately six feet into the 29-foot rear yard 

setback that is required by the Nottingham Trace zoning text Section E(5)(c). The 

homeowner proposes to construct a covered patio using columns with a fireplace attached 

to the end of it. 

2. The rear yard primary building setback for this property is 35 feet. The home is located 37 

+/- feet from the rear property line. The zoning text allows for decks, screened porches and 

patios to encroach into the primary building setback a maximum of six feet. Therefore, the 

minimum rear yard setback for decks, screened porches and patios is 29 feet. As a result, 

the property owner has eight feet of developable space for decks, screened porches and 

patios. The homeowner proposes to encroach the 29 foot setback by six feet.  

3. There do not appear to be special conditions and circumstances exist which are peculiar to 

this property. All of the lots along this western boundary of the subdivision have the same 

setback. However, the subdivision has varying building setback requirements. Interior lots 

typically have a 15 to 20 foot primary building setback. Lots located on the periphery of 

the subdivision, such as this one, have larger setbacks since they are adjacent to existing 

township or Columbus residences.  

4. The rear of the property beyond the covered porch is a swale condition with a large drop-

off in grade that conveys stormwater runoff.  The drainage easement is 20 feet in width and 

the applicant is not proposing to encroach into the easement. While not required, it appears 

landscape buffering cannot be installed between the covered patio and rear lot line due to 

the drainage easement.  



 

PC 24 0916 6309 Callaway Square West VAR-61-2024 3 of 4 

5. The variance does not appear to be substantial.  The zoning contemplates rear yard 

amenities such as this to encroach the setbacks. Additionally, the applicant does not 

propose to encroach into the drainage easement. The house located behind this property is 

over 220 feet away from the property line and there appears to be an existing tree line to 

provide buffering.  

6. The proposed addition does not appear to alter the neighborhood's essential character 

because the addition style is similar to other additions in the subdivision. In addition, the 

design of the columns for the porch will match the front elevation.  

a. The proposed fireplace includes siding on the exterior. According to the 

Nottingham Trace zoning text, only brick is permitted as an exterior material for 

fireplaces. Therefore, city staff recommends a condition of approval requiring the 

fireplace chimney material be changed to brick (condition #1). 

7. It appears the variance can be solved in some other manner by reducing the covered patio’s 

size. The zoning text contemplates encroachments and permits a 6-foot encroachment into 

the rear yard setback for all lots. If the size of the patio and fireplace were reduced by 6 +/- 

feet, there would be no need for a variance.  

8. The variance will not adversely affect the delivery of government services, the health, and 

safety of persons residing or working in the vicinity of the proposed development, be 

materially detrimental to the public welfare, or injurious to private property or public 

improvements in the vicinity. 

 

IV. SUMMARY 

The lot has a larger rear yard setback than a typical home within the subdivision since it is located 

on the boundary of the subdivision and is adjacent to a township residence. The existing house 

(outside of the subdivision) behind the subject property is over 220 feet away and there is an 

existing tree line. The covered patio will not impact any public or private utilities or stormwater 

conveyance.   

 

V. ACTION 

Should the Planning Commission find that the application has sufficient basis for approval, the 

following motion is appropriate. 

 

Move to approve application VAR-61-2024 based on the findings in the staff report (conditions of 

approval may be added). 

1. The exterior of the fireplace shall be brick. 

  



 

PC 24 0916 6309 Callaway Square West VAR-61-2024 4 of 4 

 

Approximate Site Location: 

 
Source: NearMap 

 

 



123

Community Development Department

RE:      City of New Albany Board and Commission Record of Action

Dear Suncraft Corporation Inc., 

Attached is the Record of Action for your recent application that was heard by one of the City of New
Albany Boards and Commissions. Please retain this document for your records.  

This Record of Action does not constitute a permit or license to construct, demolish, occupy or make
alterations to any land area or building.  A building and/or zoning permit is required before any work can
be performed.  For more information on the permitting process, please contact the Community
Development Department.

Additionally, if the Record of Action lists conditions of approval these conditions must be met prior to
issuance of any zoning or building permits.  

Please contact our office at (614) 939-2254 with any questions. 

Thank you. 

naw10
Alpha White Exhibit



123

Community Development Department

Decision and Record of Action
Tuesday, September 17, 2024

The New Albany Planning Commission took the following action on 09/16/2024 .

Variance

Location: 6309  Callaway Square W, Unit:107
Applicant: Suncraft Corporation Inc., 

Application: PLVARI20240061
Request: A variance request to the Nottingham Trace zoning text Section E(5)(c), to allow a 
covered porch and fireplace to encroach 4 feet into the 29 foot rear yard setback.
Motion: To approve

Commission Vote: Motion Denied, 1-3

Result: Variance, PLVARI20240061 was Denied, by a vote of 1-3.

Recorded in the Official Journal this September 17, 2024

Condition(s) of Approval: N/A

Staff Certification:

Sierra Cratic-Smith Planner

scratics
Underline



































PC 24 1118 NACO C-PUD Zoning Amendment ZC-71-2024  1 of 6   

 
 
 
 

Planning Commission Staff Report 
November 18, 2024 Meeting 

  
 

NEW ALBANY COUNTRY CLUB SECTION 30 
ZONING AMENDMENT 

 
 
LOCATION:  Section 30 of the New Albany Country Club (East Nine) (PID: 222-

005185 and 46 others, see attached). 
APPLICANT: The New Albany Company LLC, c/o Aaron Underhill, Esq.  
REQUEST: Zoning Amendment   
ZONING:   Comprehensive-Planned Unit Development (C-PUD) to Infill- Planned 

Unit Development (I-PUD) 
STRATEGIC PLAN:  Residential District 
APPLICATION: ZC-71-2024 
 
Review based on: Application materials received September 23, 2024 and November 1, 2024   
Staff report completed by Sierra Saumenig, Planner. 
 
I. REQUEST AND BACKGROUND  

The applicant requests review and recommendation to rezone 30.04+/- acres from 
Comprehensive-Planned Unit Development (C-PUD) to Infill-Planned Unit Development (I-
PUD).  
 
The site is currently zoned C-PUD (1998 NACO C-PUD Subarea 1D; Lambton Park Central 
Cluster) and has been developed with public infrastructure, including but not limited to an 
extension of Head of Pond Road into the property from Lambton Park on the southwest, an 
extension of Baughman Grant into the property from the north, other internal streets, and 
utilities and stormwater management infrastructure. While infrastructure has been constructed, 
no lots have been sold and no homes have been built within the subdivision. The applicant 
requests to reconfigure parcels and add four additional lots within the subdivision, increasing 
from 36 to 40 lots. 
 
The applicant also requests review and approval of a preliminary plat application associated 
with New Albany Country Club Section 30. This application is reviewed under a separate staff 
report. 
 
II. SITE DESCRIPTION & USE 
The 30.04+/- acre development area is part of a larger 105.34+/- acre property. A majority of the 
property contains portions of the New Albany Country Club golf course as well as 36 previously 
platted residential lots, 5 reserves, and three public streets. The surrounding land uses include the 
golf course and residentially zoned and used land. 
 
III. PLAN REVIEW 
Planning Commission’s review authority of the zoning amendment application is found under 
C.O. Chapters 1107.02 and 1159.09. Upon review of the proposed amendment to the zoning map, 
the Commission is to make recommendation to City Council. Staff’s review is based on city plans 
and studies, proposed zoning text, and the codified ordinances. Primary concerns and issues have 
been indicated below, with needed action or recommended action in underlined text.  

 



PC 24 1118 NACO C-PUD Zoning Amendment ZC-71-2024  2 of 6   

Per Codified Ordinance Chapter 1111.06 in deciding on the change, the Planning Commission 
shall consider, among other things, the following elements of the case: 

(a) Adjacent land use. 
(b) The relationship of topography to the use intended or to its implications. 
(c) Access, traffic flow. 
(d) Adjacent zoning. 
(e) The correctness of the application for the type of change requested. 
(f) The relationship of the use requested to the public health, safety, or general welfare. 
(g) The relationship of the area requested to the area to be used. 
(h) The impact of the proposed use on the local school district(s). 

 
Per Codified Ordinance Chapter 1159.08 the basis for approval of a preliminary development 
plan in an I-PUD shall be: 

(a) That the proposed development is consistent in all respects with the purpose, intent and 
applicable standards of the Zoning Code; 

(b) That the proposed development is in general conformity with the Strategic Plan or 
portion thereof as it may apply; 

(c) That the proposed development advances the general welfare of the Municipality; 
(d) That the benefits, improved arrangement and design of the proposed development justify 

the deviation from standard development requirements included in the Zoning Ordinance; 
(e) Various types of land or building proposed in the project; 
(f) Where applicable, the relationship of buildings and structures to each other and to such 

other facilities as are appropriate with regard to land area; proposed density of dwelling 
units may not violate any contractual agreement contained in any utility contract then in 
effect; 

(g) Traffic and circulation systems within the proposed project as well as its appropriateness 
to existing facilities in the surrounding area; 

(h) Building heights of all structures with regard to their visual impact on adjacent facilities; 
(i) Front, side and rear yard definitions and uses where they occur at the development 

periphery; 
(j) Gross commercial building area; 
(k) Area ratios and designation of the land surfaces to which they apply; 
(l) Spaces between buildings and open areas; 
(m) Width of streets in the project; 
(n) Setbacks from streets; 
(o) Off-street parking and loading standards; 
(p) The order in which development will likely proceed in complex, multi-use, multi-phase 

developments; 
(q) The potential impact of the proposed plan on the student population of the local school 

district(s); 
(r) The Ohio Environmental Protection Agency's 401 permit, and/or isolated wetland permit 

(if required); 
(s) The U.S. Army Corps of Engineers 404 permit, or nationwide permit (if required). 

 
 
A. Engage New Albany Strategic Plan  
The site is located within the Residential District future land use district. The Engage New 
Albany Strategic Plan lists the following development standards for the Residential District: 

• Organically shaped stormwater management ponds and areas should be incorporated into 
the overall design as natural features and assets to the community. 

• Houses should front onto public open spaces and not back onto public parks or roads. 
• All or adequate amounts of open space and parkland is strongly encouraged to be 

provided on-site. 
• A hierarchy of open spaces is encouraged. Each development should have at least one 

open space located near the center of the development. Typically, neighborhood parks 



PC 24 1118 NACO C-PUD Zoning Amendment ZC-71-2024  3 of 6   

range from a half an acre to 5 acres. Multiple greens may be necessary in large 
developments to provide centrally located greens.  

• Adequate amounts of open space and parkland are encouraged to be provided on site.  
• Rear or side loaded garages are encouraged. When a garage faces the street, the front 

façade of the garage should be set back from the front facade of the house.  
• Any proposed residential development outside of the Village Center shall have a base 

density of 1 dwelling unit per gross acre in order to preserve and protect the community’s 
natural resources and support the overall land conservation goals of the community. A 
transfer of residential density can be used to achieve a gross density of 1 dwelling unit 
per acre.  

• Private streets are at odds with many of the community’s planning principles such as: 
interconnectivity, a hierarchy of street typologies and a connected community. To 
achieve these principles, streets within residential developments must be public.  

 
The Engage New Albany Strategic Plan recommends the following standards as prerequisites for 
all development proposals in New Albany: 

• Development should meet setback recommendations contained in strategic plan. 
• Streets must be public and not gated. Cul-de-sacs are strongly discouraged. 
• Parks and open spaces should be provided, publicly dedicated and meet the quantity 

requirements established in the city’s subdivision regulations (i.e. 20% gross open space 
and 2,400 sf of parkland dedication for each lot). 

o All or adequate amounts of open space and parkland is strongly encouraged to be 
provided on-site. If it cannot be provided on-site, purchasing and publicly 
dedicating land to expand the Rocky Fork Metro Park or park space for the Joint 
Parks District is an acceptable alternative. 

• The New Albany Design Guidelines & Requirements for residential development must 
be met. 

• Quality streetscape elements, including an amenity zone, street trees, and sidewalks or 
leisure 

• Trails and sidewalks should be provided on both sides of all public streets. 
• Homes should front streets, parks and open spaces. 
• A residential density of 1 dwelling unit (du) per acre is required for single-family 

residential and a density of 3 du per acre for age restricted housing. 
o Higher density may be allowed if additional land is purchased and deed 

restricted. This type of density “offset” ensures that the gross density of the 
community will not be greater than 1 unit per acre. Any land purchased for use as 
an offset, should be within the NAPLS district or within the metro park zone. 

o 3 du/acre is only acceptable if 100% age restricted. Otherwise, the federal 
regulations and criteria for subdivisions to qualify as age-restricted must be 
accounted for when calculating density (i.e. 80% age restricted and 20% non-age 
restricted). 

o Age restriction must be recorded as a deed restriction and included as a 
requirement in the subdivision’s zoning text. 

 
B. Use, Site and Layout 

1. The proposed rezoning is Infill-Planned Unit Development (I-PUD) that permits the 
development of a 40 lot single family residential subdivision. 

2. The Engage New Albany strategic plan residential land use district states that the gross 
density is 1 dwelling unit per acre for traditional single-family. 

o The proposed density is 1.33 units/acre. Staff recommends a condition of 
approval that the applicant withdraws 4 units from the housing bank to 
accommodate the additional homes to be developed in this zoning district 
(condition #1).  

o The existing zoning for the property allows for a maximum of 88 homes to be 
constructed.  



PC 24 1118 NACO C-PUD Zoning Amendment ZC-71-2024  4 of 6   

o The previously approved final development plan and the plat for this 
subdivision provided for 36 homes to be constructed on the property, with the 
balance of the 88 homes that are permitted on site having been deposited into 
the “housing bank.”  

3. A school impact statement has been submitted.  The applicant estimates that 0.8 
students per unit will be generated for a total of 32 students. Based on an assumed 32 
students generated, the applicant has projected this development to have a net positive 
financial impact on the school district.   

4. There are lots situated where homes may back onto the adjacent private, New Albany 
Country Club golf course and proposed privately owned reserve areas within the 
subdivision.  

5. The zoning district is made up of two subareas that are approximately 30.04 acres and 
permits the following uses: 

o Single-family detached homes, single family attached homes, and related 
accessory structures.  
 Subarea 1 – This subarea shall have a maximum of 29 units that are 

proposed to be single-family detached homes. 
 Subarea 2- This subarea shall have a maximum of 11 units that are 

proposed to be detached single-family and or attached single-family 
homes. 

o Publicly or privately-owned parks and open spaces. 
6. The zoning text established the following setbacks for Subarea 1.  

SETBACKS (SUBAREA 1) 
Front Yard 20 feet 
Side Yard  15 feet 
Rear Yard  25 feet  
 

7. Subarea 2 allows for zero lot line development since attached single-family homes are 
permitted so there are no minimum setbacks from any lot lines for parcels within this 
section. 

 
C. Access, Loading, Parking  

1. These subareas generally contain the same or similar standards as the surrounding 
country club for standards such as a minimum of two off-street parking spaces, road 
widths, and pavement sections. 

2. Subarea 1 is proposed to have parking on both sides of the public streets , Subarea 2 is 
proposed to have on-street parking on only one side of the public street. This will be 
reviewed at the time of the final development plan. 

3. Right-of-way widths within this zoning district were previously dedicated to the city and 
the right-of-way width and existing pavement widths shall remain as they exist today. 
This will be recorded in the re-plat.  

a. There will be one deviation for a limited portion of Head of Pond Road along 
the eastern portion of Subarea 2 that has frontage along that street. The final 
location and specifications of this will be shown in the final re-plat.  

4. The zoning text states that within Subarea 2, a new public street will be provided in a 
loop configuration and the minimum pavement for this street shall be 20 feet. The final 
design will be determined during the review and approval of the final development plan.  

a. Additional turning studies may be required at the time of the final 
development plan to ensure emergency and service vehicles can adequately 
and safely access and navigate the streets. The city staff recommend this is a 
condition of approval, subject to staff approval (condition #2). 

5. The zoning text states that there will be a public brick sidewalk on both sides of Head of 
Pond Road and Baughman Grant, as well as on the west side of Head of Pond Court. An 
existing asphalt path along the east side of Head of Pond Court, extending from its 
intersection with Head of Pond Road, will remain in place. Existing public sidewalks and 



PC 24 1118 NACO C-PUD Zoning Amendment ZC-71-2024  5 of 6   

leisure paths are proposed to be removed to accommodate the brick sidewalks which will 
be a minimum of 4 feet in width.  

a. Staff recommends a condition of approval that the maintenance 
responsibilities and agreement is entered at the time of final development 
plan for non-traditional infrastructure materials (condition #3). 

 
D. Architectural Standards 

1. The zoning text states that the architectural standards shall be in accordance with the 
city’s Design Guidelines and Requirements (DGR’s). 

2. Architecture will be evaluated as part of the final development plan application.  
 

E. Parkland, Buffering, Landscaping, Open Space, Screening  
1. New Albany’s Codified Ordinance requires that 2,400 square feet per home be dedicated 

as park land and 20% of the total acreage in the subdivision shall be dedicated as open 
space. For this development the total required park land and open space is 6.0 acres. The 
applicant is providing multiple reserve areas totaling 5.7 acres. As noted in the zoning 
text, the applicant intends to offset their shortage of parkland by using the NACO 
parkland bank credits on record with the city as the amount of open space provided does 
not meet code requirements. The Parks and Trails Advisory Board will evaluate the 
proposed open space and parkland as part of the final development plan submittal. 

a. Staff recommends a condition of approval that the quantity of withdrawal of 
parkland credits shall be detailed in the final development plan application 
(condition #4).   

2. The stormwater basin centrally located within the development will be located in whole 
or in part on privately owned lots. The maintenance of the basin will be by a forced and 
funded property owner’s association and appropriate easements will be provided on the 
final plat.  

3. The zoning text states that street trees shall be permitted but not required in Subarea 2. If 
street trees are provided, details regarding sizing and spacing will be provided at the time 
of final development plan approval for this subarea.  

4. The zoning texts exempts this zoning district from the requirement that all residences are 
to be located within 1,200 feet of playground equipment.  

5. Parkland, buffering, landscaping, open space, and screening requirements will be 
evaluated as part of the final development plan application.  

 
F. Lighting & Signage 

1. The zoning text specifies that street lights shall be provided at each street intersection 
with the fixture, color, and spacing to be approved at the time of the final development 
plan. Additionally, entry feature lighting shall be approved at the time of the final 
development plan. Lighting shall be in accordance with the city’s codified ordinances.  

2. The zoning text requires the developer to use the standard city street and regulatory 
signage. All proposed signage for the subdivision is subject to review and approval of the 
Planning Commission at the time of the final development plan application.  

 
 
IV.  ENGINEER’S COMMENTS 
The City Engineer has reviewed the referenced plan in accordance with the engineering related 
requirements of Code Section 1159.07(b)(3) and provided no comments.  
 
V. SUMMARY: 
The rezoning is generally consistent with the Residential land use recommendations of the New 
Albany Strategic Plan. Although the density and open space do not meet city requirements, the 
1998 NACO PUD provides a housing and parkland bank to offset this deviation which has been 
utilized for other projects.  The new development will complement the established character of 
the immediate area and maintain the current connectivity.   
 



PC 24 1118 NACO C-PUD Zoning Amendment ZC-71-2024  6 of 6   

Additional landscape, architecture, parking, and signage details will be reviewed as part of a 
future final development plan application for the subdivision. 
 
VI. ACTION 
Suggested Motion for ZC-71-2024:  
 
Move to approve rezoning/preliminary development plan application ZC-71-2024 based on the 
findings in the staff report with the following conditions.  

1. That the applicant withdraws 4 units from the housing bank to accommodate the 
additional homes to be developed in this zoning district. 

2. Additional turning studies may be required at the time of the final development plan to 
ensure emergency and service vehicles can adequately and safely access and navigate 
the streets, subject to staff approval. 

3. That the maintenance responsibilities and agreement is entered at the time of final 
development plan for non-traditional infrastructure materials. 

4. The quantity of withdrawal of parkland credits shall be detailed in the final 
development plan application. 

 
 
Approximate Site Location: 
 

 







































123

Community Development Department

RE:      City of New Albany Board and Commission Record of Action

Dear The New Albany Company, 

Attached is the Record of Action for your recent application that was heard by one of the City of New
Albany Boards and Commissions. Please retain this document for your records.  

This Record of Action does not constitute a permit or license to construct, demolish, occupy or make
alterations to any land area or building.  A building and/or zoning permit is required before any work can
be performed.  For more information on the permitting process, please contact the Community
Development Department.

Additionally, if the Record of Action lists conditions of approval these conditions must be met prior to
issuance of any zoning or building permits.  

Please contact our office at (614) 939-2254 with any questions.

Thank you. 



123

Community Development Department

Decision and Record of Action
Tuesday, November 19, 2024

The New Albany Planning Commission took the following action on 11/18/2024 .

Zoning Amendment

Location: 0 Head of Pond Road
Applicant: The New Albany Company, 

Application: PLZC20240071
Request: Rezoning of 30.04 acres generally located north and west of Lambton Park Road and south

of Brandon Road (PID: 222-005185 and 46 others (see backside of agenda for complete
parcel list)) from Comprehensive-Planned Unit Development (C-PUD) to Infill-Planned
Unit Development (I-PUD).

Motion: To Approve

Commission Vote: Motion Approval with Conditions, 5-0

Result: Zoning Amendment, PLZC20240071 was Approved with Conditions, by a vote of 5-0.

Recorded in the Official Journal this

Condition(s) of Approval:

1. That the applicant withdraws 4 units from the housing bank to accommodate the additional homes to be
developed in this zoning district.
2. Additional turning studies may be required at the time of the final development plan to ensure
emergency and service vehicles can adequately and safely access and navigate the streets, subject to staff
approval.
3.That the maintenance responsibilities and agreement is entered at the time of final development plan for
non-traditional infrastructure materials.
4.The quantity of withdrawal of parkland credits shall be detailed in the final development plan
application.
5. The brick sidewalks and leisure trails should be approved by the New Albany Parks and Trails Advisory
Board.
6. Subarea 2 does not include the gatehouse.  The gatehouse will be in Subarea 3 and the specifications for
setbacks shall be addressed in the final development plan.

Staff Certification:



Sierra Saumenig
Planner



PC 24 1118 Courtyards at Haines Creek Phase 1 Final Plat FPL-85-2024  1 of 4   

 

 

 

 

Planning Commission Staff Report 

November 18, 2024 Meeting 

  

 

COURTYARDS AT HAINES CREEK SUBDIVISION 

PHASE 1 FINAL PLAT 

 

LOCATION:  Generally located at the northwest corner of the intersection at Central 

College Road and Jug Street Rd NW (PIDs: 222-005156, 222-005157, 

222-005158, 222-005159). 

APPLICANT:   Epcon Haines Creek, LLC 

REQUEST: Final Plat 

ZONING:   Courtyards at Haines Creek I-PUD Zoning District 

STRATEGIC PLAN:  Residential District 

APPLICATION: FPL-85-2024 

 

Review based on: Application materials received on October 29, 2024.  

Staff report completed by Chris Christian, Planner II.  

 

I. REQUEST AND BACKGROUND  

The final plat application is for the 1st phase of the Courtyards at Haines Creek subdivision. 

This phase includes 46 residential lots, 6 reserves (A, B, H, I, G, F1), and 7 new streets on 

29.05 +/- acres 

 

The Planning Commission reviewed the zoning change and preliminary development plan for 

the property on June 20, 2023 (ZC-07-2023) and the zoning change was adopted by city council 

on July 18, 2023 (O-84-2023). The Planning Commission reviewed and approved the final 

development plan and preliminary plat for the subdivision on March 4, 2024.  

 

II. SITE DESCRIPTION & USE 

The 63.5+/- acre subdivision is located in Franklin County. The site is generally located at the 

northwest corner of the intersection at Central College Road and Jug Street Rd NW. The site is 

located immediately west of the Licking County line and immediately, north of Agricultural 

zoned and residentially used properties, and there are unincorporated residentially zoned and used 

properties to the west and north of the site.  

 

III. PLAN REVIEW 

The Planning Commission’s review authority of the plat is found under C.O. Section 1187. The 

staff’s review is based on New Albany plans and studies, zoning text, and zoning regulations.  

 

Residential Lots 

1. The final plat is consistent with the approved Courtyards at Haines Creek final development 

plan and preliminary plat. The plat shows 46 residential lots. The proposed lot layout and 

dimensions match what is shown on the final development plan and meet the requirements of 

the zoning text.  

o The plat appropriately shows the lot widths to be at least 52 feet, as required by zoning 

text section VI(D). 

o The plat appropriately shows the lot depths to be at least 115 feet, as required by zoning 

text section VI(E). 

o The plat appropriately shows the following front yard setbacks, as required by the zoning 

text section VI(F)(2): 



PC 24 1118 Courtyards at Haines Creek Phase 1 Final Plat FPL-85-2024  2 of 4   

▪ A 15-foot setback for Lane Homes (lots 100 and 101). 

▪ A 20-foot setback for all other lots on the preliminary plat.  

o Zoning text section VI(F)(1) states that there shall be a minimum building and pavement 

setback of 100 feet from the Central College Road and Jug Street right-of-way. However, 

the text states that homes and other improvements located on lots 71 and 72 may 

encroach into this setback. This setback is shown on the plat.  

 

Streets 

1. The plat creates seven (7) new publicly dedicated streets totaling 6.34+/- acres. All of the new 

streets meet the right-of-way requirements in the zoning text:  

o Haines Creek Drive provides access to the subdivision from Central College Road, with 

60 feet of right-of-way.  

o Cedarville Drive, provides access to the subdivision from Jug Street, with 50 feet of 

right-of-way. 

o Antioch Drive, is stubbed from this development to the west property line to provide for a 

future connection with the existing portion of McClellan Drive located in the Tidewater 

subdivision, with 50 feet of right-of-way. 

o Wooster Drive, with 50 feet of right-of-way. 

o Hiram Lane, a publicly dedicated alley, with 20 feet of right-of-way. 

o Findlay Drive, with 50 feet of right-of-way. 

o Lourdes Drive, with 50 feet of right-of-way. 

2. The utility easements are shown on the plat. 

3. Per the city’s subdivision regulations, C.O. 1187.04, all new streets shall be named and shall 

be subject to the approval of the Planning Commission. The applicant proposes to utilize the 

names of private Ohio colleges as street names within the subdivision. Haines Creek Drive 

shares the same name as the subdivision.  

 

Parkland, Open Space and Tree Preservation Areas 

1. The plat contains six (6) reserve areas shown as Reserves “A”, “B”, “H”, “I”, “G”, and “F1”, 

on the plat with a total acreage of 14.16+/- acres.  

o According to the plat notes, all Reserves other than “H” shall be owned by the City of 

New Albany and maintained by the homeowner’s association in perpetuity for open space 

and/or stormwater retention.  

o The plat states that Reserve “H” will be owned and maintained by the homeowner’s 

association for a community amenity area.  

o The plat states that Reserve “I” shall be owned by the City of New Albany and 

maintained by the homeowner’s association until a public road is constructed within the 

reserves and is dedicated to the city as public right-of-way. Specifically, the city will 

maintain just the street, which is everything between and including the concrete curbs. 

Everything else outside of the curbs must be maintained by the HOA in perpetuity. 

2. As approved as part of the final development plan and preliminary plat, there is a 1-acre 

deficit in parkland for the subdivision. As part of those applications, the applicant completed 

and submitted an appraisal, as required in Chapter 1165.10(d). Based upon the appraisal, the 

developer requests approval of a fee in lieu of $50,000/acre, which is a total of $50,000 for 

this application ($50,000/acre multiplied by 1.00 = $50,000).  

o The Planning Commission approved the final development plan and preliminary 

plat applications with the following condition: “City council should consider 

obtaining their own appraisal for the applicant's fee-in-lieu payment, and that it 

should perhaps be of value no less than the city's last purchase of parkland”.  

o The fee-in-lieu request will be reviewed by city council before this final plat 

application is approved. This condition is carried over on this application 

(condition #1). 

3. Various tree preservation zones are shown on the preliminary plat and comply with the tree 

preservation zone requirements of zoning text section VI(G).  



PC 24 1118 Courtyards at Haines Creek Phase 1 Final Plat FPL-85-2024  3 of 4   

4. The plat requires the developer to provide Tree Preservation Zone signs on every other lot 

line. It states the design shall be subject to staff approval and shall be installed by the 

developer before infrastructure acceptance by the city.  

5. C.O. 1187.04(d)(4) and (5) requires verification that an application, if required, has been 

submitted to the Ohio Environmental Protection Agency in compliance with Section 401 of 

the Clean Water Act and to the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers in compliance with Section 404 

of the Clean Water Act. As part of the preliminary plat approval, the applicant stated that a 

delineation report is currently under review with the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers; however, 

the permits have not yet been issued. Staff requests evidence of any permits received from the 

Ohio Environmental Protection Agency as a condition of approval (condition #2).  

 

IV. ENGINEER’S COMMENTS 

The City Engineer has reviewed the referenced plan in accordance with the engineering related 

requirements of Code Section 1159.07(b)(3) and provided the following comments. Staff 

recommends a condition of approval that these comments be addressed by the applicant, subject 

to staff approval (condition #3).  

1. We recommend that the applicant have the plat reviewed by the Franklin County 

Engineer’s office and a summary of County Engineer review comments and the 

applicant’s comment responses be provided for our records. 

2. Sheet 2 of the plat refers to a May 2024 Flood Plain Study.  If available, label the most 

current FIRM Panel Number on this sheet. 

 

V. ACTION 

Basis for Approval: 

The final plat is consistent with the approved preliminary plat and final development plan and 

meets code requirements. Should the Planning Commission approve the application, the 

following motion would be appropriate: 

 

Suggested Motion for FPL-85-2024:  

 

Move to approve final plat application FPL-85-2024 

 with the following conditions:  

1. City council should consider obtaining their own appraisal for the applicant's fee-in-lieu 

payment, and that it should perhaps be of value no less than the city's last purchase of 

parkland.  

2. Evidence of any permits received from the Ohio Environmental Protection Agency shall 

be provided to the city staff. 

3. The city engineer comments must be addressed, subject to staff approval. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



PC 24 1118 Courtyards at Haines Creek Phase 1 Final Plat FPL-85-2024  4 of 4   

Approximate Site Location: 

 
Source: ArcGIS 



Ci 
 

 

 

City of New Albany 
99 West  Main Street 
New Albany, Ohio 43054 

MEMO 

 

         404.616-02 
         November 8, 2024 
To:  Christopher Christian                  
 City Planner 
  
From:  Matt Ferris, P.E., P.S.     Re:      The Courtyards at Haines  
By: Jay M. Herskowitz, P.E., BCEE               Creek Final Plat   

                                                                                    Phase 1 

 
 
  
We reviewed the referenced plat in accordance with Code Section 1187.06.  Our review 

comments are as follows:   

1. We recommend that the applicant have the plat reviewed by the Franklin County 

Engineer’s office and a summary of County Engineer review comments and the 

applicant’s comment responses be provided for our records. 

2. Sheet 2 of the plat refers to a May 2024 Flood Plain Study.  If available, label the most  

current FIRM Panel Number on this sheet. 

 

MEF/JMH 
 
 
 
 
cc:  Josh Albright, Development Engineer  
       Steve Mayer, Planning Manager 



123

Community Development Department

RE:      City of New Albany Board and Commission Record of Action

Dear Epcon Haines Creek, LLC

Attached is the Record of Action for your recent application that was heard by one of the City of New
Albany Boards and Commissions. Please retain this document for your records. 

This Record of Action does not constitute a permit or license to construct, demolish, occupy or make
alterations to any land area or building.  A building and/or zoning permit is required before any work can
be performed.  For more information on the permitting process, please contact the Community
Development Department.

Additionally, if the Record of Action lists conditions of approval these conditions must be met prior to
issuance of any zoning or building permits. 

Please contact our office at (614) 939-2254 with any questions.

Thank you.



123

Community Development Department

Decision and Record of Action
Thursday, November 21, 2024

The New Albany Planning Commission took the following action on 11/18/2024 .

Final Plat

Location: 8306 CENTRAL COLLEGE RD8390 CENTRAL COLLEGE RD
Applicant: Epcon Haines Creek, LLC

Application: PLFPL20240085
Request: Final plat for phase 1 of the Courtyards at Haines Creek subdivision located at 8390 and

8306 Central College Road in Franklin County (PIDs: 222-005156, 222-005157,
222-005158, 222-005159).

Motion: Move to approve with conditions

Commission Vote: Motion Approved with Conditions, 5-0

Result: Final Plat, PLFPL20240085 was Approved with Conditions, by a vote of 5-0.

Recorded in the Official Journal this November 20, 2024

Condition(s) of Approval:

1. City council should consider obtaining their own appraisal for the applicant's fee-in-lieu
payment, and that it should perhaps be of value no less than the city's last purchase of
parkland.

2. Evidence of any permits received from the Ohio Environmental Protection Agency shall
be provided to the city staff.

3. The city engineer comments must be addressed, subject to staff approval.
4. A note must be added to the plat that refers back to the Courtyards at Haines Creek Infill Planned Unit

Development zoning text. The note shall indicate that there are additional lot setbacks and restrictions
in the zoning text that are not reflected on the plat.

Staff Certification:

Chris Christian
Planner II



Courtyards at Haines Creek
Phase 1 Final Plat



The Commission should consider, at a minimum, the 
following (per Section 1159.08):That the proposed 
development is consistent in all respects with the 
purpose, intent and applicable standards of the Zoning 
Code;

(g) Building heights of all structures with regard to their visual impact 
on adjacent facilities;



Master Grading Plan 
• At what point is the master grading plan reviewed and approved?  

What is the criteria for approval?

• In this case the plan is MATERIAL and should have been put before 
the Plain/Rockey Fork/Blacklick Accord Panel

• Preliminary developments plans did not show the grading





The base of the home on lot# 102 will be 7 feet 
higher than the home at 8238 Central College 

The road stub will be 7 feet above grade for our 
home at 8238 Central College Rd.  This disparity 
negatively effects the home’s value.







Who has measured current drainage?

• Epcon is not allowed to decrease or increase drainage on to adjoining 
properties.

• Who has measured?  Who has approved drainage/grading?



Still Needed Before Construction??

• Corps Of Engineers approval

• Ohio EPA approval

• Review by Franklin County Engineering Department























PC 24 1118 8 Hawksmoor Final Plat Modification FPM-81-24  1 of 3   

 

 

 

 

Planning Commission Staff Report 

November 18, 2024 Meeting 

  

 

8 HAWKSMOOR 

FINAL PLAT MODIFICATION 

 

LOCATION:  8 Hawksmoor (PID: 222-004645-00). 

APPLICANT:   Trevor Arnold 

REQUEST: Final Plat Modification 

ZONING:   Hawksmoor I-PUD Zoning District 

STRATEGIC PLAN:  Residential District 

APPLICATION: FPM-81-2024 

 

Review based on: Application materials received on October 29, 2024.  

Staff report completed by Chris Christian, Planner II.   

 

I. REQUEST AND BACKGROUND  

The final plat application is for 8 Hawksmoor Drive and includes the following modifications: 

• Remove an existing .094-acre tree preservation zone/no build zone/drainage easement, 

• Create a new .10-acre tree preservation zone/no build zone/drainage easement, and 

• Create a new .050-acre storm easement on the property.  

 

II. SITE DESCRIPTION & USE 

The property is located in the Hawksmoor subdivision which is accessed off of State Route 605 to 

the east. The property is 3.29 acres in size and currently contains a single-family home, a 

detached structure, and a swimming pool. The property is surrounded by residentially zoned and 

used properties.  

 

III. PLAN REVIEW 

The Planning Commission’s review authority of the plat is found under C.O. Section 1187. The 

staff’s review is based on New Albany plans and studies, zoning text, and zoning regulations.  

• The final plat application includes the following modifications: 

o Remove an existing .094-acre tree preservation zone/no build zone/drainage 

easement,  

o Create a new .10-acre tree preservation zone/no build zone/drainage easement, and 

o Create a new .050-acre storm easement on the property.  

• The existing, .094-acre tree preservation/no build zone/ drainage easement is located near the 

home on the property. Some of the submittal material suggests that this zone is being 

removed to allow a new home addition to be built in this area which would not be permitted 

is plat modification application is not approved.  

• The applicant proposes to create a new .10-acre tree preservation zone/no build zone/drainage 

easement along the southern property line, approximately 50 feet south of the existing zone.  

o The applicant submitted a tree survey as part of the application. It appears there are 

existing trees in the new preservation zone however, it is unclear as the survey does 

not indicate where the existing trees are located in relation to the new tree 

preservation zone. Staff recommends that the Planning Commission confirm the 

location of the existing trees in relation to these new zones with the applicant.  

o The plat states that no improvements of any kind are allowed in this new 

preservation/no build/drainage easement area. This language is identical to the 



PC 24 1118 8 Hawksmoor Final Plat Modification FPM-81-24  2 of 3   

existing plat however it is more restrictive as it does not allow the installation of 

utilities in this zone.  

o Note D on the plat states that preservation zone markers are to be installed along the 

edge of the new preservation zone however, the note refers to lots that are not subject 

to this plat modification. Staff recommends a condition of approval that the plat is 

modified to reflect the accurate location of where the markers are to be placed 

(condition #1).  

• The applicant proposes to create a new, .050 storm easement on the property generally 

located between the existing and new preservation/no build/drainage easement areas.  

• The plat title refers to lots 8-11 however, this plat modification only applies to lot 8. Staff 

recommends a condition of approval that the plat be modified to refer only to lot 8 (condition 

#2).  

 

 

IV. ENGINEER’S COMMENTS 

The City Engineer has reviewed the referenced plan in accordance with the engineering related 

requirements of Code Section 1159.07(b)(3) and provided the following comments. Staff 

recommends a condition of approval that these comments be addressed by the applicant, subject 

to staff approval (condition #3).  

1. We recommend that the applicant provide written letters from private utility companies 

(e.g., gas, electric, telecommunications, etc.) identifying what utilities, if any, have been 

installed in the areas where preservation zones are to be relocated. 

2. We recommend that storm easement B be retitled as Drainage Easement B.  Only storm 

sewer is to be installed in this easement with no above grade structures permitted. 

3. Work with staff to determine if any existing trees in the area where the tree preservation 

zone is to be vacated should be relocated. 

4. Have a Professional Surveyor sign/stamp sheet 1. 

5. Refer to Note D on sheet 2.  Obtain markers from staff and place signage around the new 

tree preservation zone that is being established. 

6. We recommend that the applicant have the area to be re-platted reviewed by the Franklin 

County Engineer’s office and a summary of County Engineer review comments and the 

applicant’s comment responses be provided for our records. 

 

V. ACTION 

Basis for Approval: 

Should the Planning Commission approve the application, the following motion would be 

appropriate: 

 

Suggested Motion for FPM-81-2024:  

 

Move to approve final plat modification application FPM-81-2024 

 with the following conditions:  

1. The plat document must be modified to accurately identify where the preservation zone 

makers are to be located.  

2. The plat document must be modified so that it refers only to lot 8.  

3. The city engineer comments must be addressed, subject to staff approval. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



PC 24 1118 8 Hawksmoor Final Plat Modification FPM-81-24  3 of 3   

Approximate Site Location: 
 

 
 
Source: NearMap 



Ci 
 

 

 

City of New Albany 
99 West  Main Street 
New Albany, Ohio 43054 

MEMO 

 

         404.712 
         November 4, 2024 
To:  Sierra Cratic-Smith      
 City Planner 
  
From:  Matt Ferris, P.E., P.S.       Re- Subdivision Hawksmoor Lot 19 
By: Jay M. Herskowitz, P.E., BCEE                

 
 
  
We reviewed the referenced plat in accordance with Code Section 1187.06.  Our review 

comments are as follows:   

1. We recommend that the applicant provide written letters from private utility companies 

(e.g., gas, electric, telecommunications, etc.) identifying what utilities, if any,  have been 

installed in the areas where preservation zones are to be relocated. 

2. We recommend that storm easement B be retitled as Drainage Easement B.  Only storm 

sewer is to be installed in this easement with no above grade structures  permitted. 

3. Work with staff to determine if any existing trees in the area where the tree preservation 

zone is to be vacated should be relocated. 

4. Have a Professional Surveyor sign/stamp sheet 1. 

5. Refer to Note D on sheet 2.  Obtain markers from staff and place signage around the 

new tree preservation zone that is being established. 

6. We recommend that the applicant have the area to be re-platted reviewed by the 

Franklin County Engineer’s office and a summary of County Engineer review comments 

and the applicant’s comment responses be provided for our records. 

 

 
MEF/JMH 
 
 
 
cc:  Josh Albright, Development Engineer   
  
                 
 

 
 
 



123

Community Development Department

RE:      City of New Albany Board and Commission Record of Action

Dear Trevor Arnold,

Attached is the Record of Action for your recent application that was heard by one of the City of New
Albany Boards and Commissions. Please retain this document for your records. 

This Record of Action does not constitute a permit or license to construct, demolish, occupy or make
alterations to any land area or building.  A building and/or zoning permit is required before any work can
be performed.  For more information on the permitting process, please contact the Community
Development Department.

Additionally, if the Record of Action lists conditions of approval these conditions must be met prior to
issuance of any zoning or building permits. 

Please contact our office at (614) 939-2254 with any questions.

Thank you.



123

Community Development Department

Decision and Record of Action
Tuesday, November 26, 2024

The New Albany Planning Commission took the following action on 11/18/2024 .

Final Plat Modification

Location: 8 HAWKSMOOR DR
Applicant: Trevor Arnold

Application: PLFPM20240081
Request: Final plat modification for 8 Hawksmoor Drive (PID: 222-004645-00).
Motion: Move to approve with conditions

Commission Vote: Motion Approved with Conditions, 5-0

Result: Final Plat Modification, PLFPM20240081 was Approved with Conditions, by a vote of 5-0.

Recorded in the Official Journal this November 26, 2024

Condition(s) of Approval:

1. The plat document must be modified to accurately identify where the preservation zone
makers are to be located.

2. The plat document must be modified so that it refers only to lot 8.
3. The city engineer comments must be addressed, subject to staff approval.
4. The new tree preservation zone boundary must be overlayed onto the tree survey document and

submitted to city staff.

Staff Certification:

Chris Christian
Planner II


	December 16, 2024 Agenda
	November 18, 2024 DRAFT Meeting Minutes
	Appendix



